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Chairman Speaks

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present you the overall performance and audited accounts of
Baani Milk Producer Company Limited for fifth financial year of operations,
2018-109.

The year gone by was a year of remarkable achievements as Baani continued to
make steady efforts of growth. Baani achieved a turnover of Rs. 365.15 Crore as
well as earned a net profit of Rs. 5.35 Crore after tax.

Directors of Baani are delighted to recommend the dividend to the producer
members whose names appear in the Register of members of the Company as on

March 31, 20109.

Baani disbursed a loyalty incentive of Rs 3.50 Crore to its active producer members who fulfilled all the laid
down conditions to qualify forincentive.

Milk procurement operations of Baani continued to be strengthened in eight districts of Punjab viz. Barnala,
Bathinda, Faridkot, Ferozepur, Mansa, Moga, Muktsar and Sangrur under 13 Milk Chilling Centres (MCCs)
as on 31" March 2019. During the year, Baani procured 1002.50 lakh kg of raw milk with an average
collection of 2.75 lakh kg per day.

Baani continued to enhance efficiencies and took cost reduction measures like reducing the logistics cost by
instituting automated tracking system to optimise logistics efficiency, proper supervision, quality checks and
logistic controls.

Baani provided technical support and trainings to all the concerned stakeholders with an emphasis on
Hygiene, GMP, SOP etc. 575 training programs for Clean Milk Production were conducted for more than
18000 members. The emphasis continued for inclusion of women members and opening of Bank Account by
all members. Baani ensures that competitive milk price is paid to the members in every 10-day cycle. The
efforts led to 100% milk payment through bank accounts.

Baani continued to provide superior quality of cattle nutrition solutions to members. Baani Feed and Baani
Min has shown substantial improvement in its sales volume to the tune of 4257.51 Metric ton and 90.80
Metric ton respectively during the year. Sales of Ration balancer was 6.28 Metric ton.

Total sales during the year was 49.65 lakh litres of PPM, 4.45 lakh kgs of Curd, 3.78 lakh litres of Lassi and
1.13 lakh kgs of Ghee. Baani foresees big potential in marketing of Milk and Milk products and plans to
expand sales operations in new areas of Punjab and adjoining states of Haryana & Himachal Pradesh. Bulk
milk sales to institutions was 949.75 lakh kg.

Baani also plans to expand its area of operations by covering the existing Milk Procurement Group (MPG)
operations of Mother Dairy Fruits and Vegetables Private Limited (MDFVL) in about four districts of
Rajasthan. This expansion will enhance business and enable procurement of more cow milk, thus enable
Baani to reach out to more milk producers and become financially strongerin future.

Your suggestions are always solicited.
Yours Sincerely,
Sd/ -

Gagandeep Singh
DIN: 06868680
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Chapterl

VALUES, VISION AND MISSION

We are committed to:
Values:

Honesty and Transparency
Quality and Excellence
Team spirit

Timeliness

Innovation

Passion

Mission:

Baani Milk Producer Company is committed to increase income of its
members by increasing milk production, reducing milk production cost and
by offering competitive price and necessary services.

Vision 2030:

Baani Milk Producer Company will be among top five dairy companies in

India and be the first choice of milk producers, customers and its
employees.




ChapterIl
YEAR GONE BY

Baani Milk Producer Company is committed to bringing about a meaningful and socially
beneficial change for the dairy producers of Punjab. Baani ensures an assured and remunerative
market for the producer members of Punjab by procuring milk from nine districts of Punjab
namely Barnala, Bathinda, Faridkot, Ferozepur, Mansa, Moga, Muktsar, Sangrur and Patiala.

Baani enrolled around 50603 milk producers, of whom about 25.3 % are women, 44% being
small holder milk producers. The members of Baani raised around Rs 9.78 Cr towards the share
capital. Baani procured 1002 lakh kgs of milk per day during 2018-19 and achieved a turnover of
Rs 365 Crores during the year. Procurement operations of Baani were extended to cover 1245
villages with 1321 Milk Pooling Points (MPPs) under 13 Milk Chilling Centres (MCCs).

The guiding principles of Baani based on transparency, commitment, and timeliness enabled
Baani to achieve 50603 members till date. Payments to the tune of about Rs 293.05 Crores were
made directly into the bank accounts of the producer members and an yearly average of Rs 8.14
Crores every tenth day of the payment cycle.

Baani endeavours to keep the operations transparent as details of milk pouring are shared with
members through an SMS via GPRS enabled Data Processor Milk Collection Unit (DPMCU)
installed at each village MPP.

Baani, as an End Implementing Agency (EIA) was sanctioned with two Sub-Project Plans (SPPs)
by the NDDB (PMU- NDP-I) under the National Dairy Plan-I (NDP-I) which was supposed to be
implemented from 2014-2015 to 2016-2017. Further the same was extended for two more years
upto2017-18 &2018-19

a. Ration Balancing Programme (RBP)
b. Village Based Milk Procurement System (VBMPS)




Chapter III
STRENGTHENING THE OPERATIONS

In order to strengthen the operations, a number of initiatives were taken by Baani in the areas of
skill enhancement of Stakeholders, Producer Institution Building, Women Empowerment,
Village Based Milk Procurement System, Quality Assurance, Marketing, Human Resources,
Information Technology and Productivity Enhancement Services.

Skill Enhancement Training Programme

Training of all stakeholders remained a focus area of Baani MPC. Baani organized training
programmes for the stakeholders to enhance their knowledge base and raise their skill levels.

For Members

The training programmes were organized for the existing members, potential members, women,
school children, rural youths, Member Relation Groups(MRG) and Village Contact Groups(VCG)
as described below:

S.No. I L No of Training No of Paft1c1pants
Programmes Trained

1 Producer Awareness Programme 764 24,024
(PAP)

5 Quality & Clean Milk Production 575 18,030
(CMP)
Women awareness programme

3 (WAP) 404 11,318

4 Rural Youth-Awareness Programme 39 762

5 Rural SChQ(?ls—Awareness Programme 16 1151
/ Competitions

6 MRG Orientation Programme 48 827

7 VCG Orientation Programme 125 1,789

8 Exposure visits (India ) 1 8

9 IB - Trainers' Training programme 2 53

10 Leadership Development Programme 2 40

11 Training of MCC Staff on O&M 1 21

12 Sahayak orientation programme 9 180

13 Sahayak refresher programme 2 40

14 Training on proc, producer relation & 5 18
QA for Facilitator

15 Skl‘ll development programme for 1 15
assistants

16 Motivation programme for assistants 1 15

17 Team building and leadership 1 15
development

18 Training programme for QA assistants 1 18




For Board of Directors

Board of Directors (BoDs) were also imparted training in various areas to enhance their business
skills. The Objective of this training was to make them understand the business model of Baani
and leadership by making them aware of the responsibilities, duties and importance behind
capacity building initiatives.

The Exposure visit was facilitated for Baani BoDs to Paayas MPC, Jaipur. During the visit, CEO
of Paayas MPC gave an overview of their operations. They also visited Rajasthan Electronics &
Instruments Limited factory, MPP, MCC and Cattle Feed plant of Paayas MPC which provided an
opportunity to learn by observing operations and interacting with members and officers of
Paayas.




For Professionals

A number of training programmes were conducted for professionals of Baani:

General Trainings, FY'18-19
1 5 S (Work Place Management) 1 23
2 Information Security 1 22
3 POSH 1 24
4 Inter Personal Communication 1 24
5 Basic Selling Skills 1 14

PRODUCERINSTITUTION BUILDING

Producer Institution Building (PIB) aims to build an institution for its producer members

through the member centric approach and better governance. The efforts are directed to increase

active membership leading to proliferation in business aspects.

PIB activities differentiate the Producer Company from the other players in the dairy sector due

to its open and transparent governance system and members equity which is equivalent to their

patronage. The ownership lies with the members, who are ultimately the policy-makers. Baani

strengthens women empowerment through their inclusion in the system. Further, for ensuring a
transparent system, efforts have been put in by Baani for 100% milk payment directly in the
bank accounts of the members.

a. Core Design Principles: Core Design Principles are being strictly followed. The business

dealings are restricted only with members. Active user membership and their
participation in business and governance are encouraged. All members have equity in
proportion to patronage based on the member classes. Board of the company is
constituted based on the provisions of the Articles of Company, which also ensures
inclusiveness in governance.

Member's Grievances are being monitored from the head office. With the support of field
staffand VCG - MRG we are able to resolve the grievances within a short span of time.

. Member Enrolment and Information Sharing with members: The automated member

enrolment process helps in giving better services to members. Baani shares all member
related information and also displays such information at MPP premises. Additionally,
Baani sends shift wise milk pouring messages to its active members as well as payment
related messages in each cycle. This has immensely benefited members as they get timely
information pertaining to milk poured, deductions, if any and net payment which helps in
enhancing the transparency in operations.

Strengthening Member Relations: VCG and MRG are formed among the members of
Baani who are consistent in pouring milk to the MPP and have given consent to be part of
these groups voluntarily. These groups facilitate effective two-way communication
between MPC and Producer Members. VCG and MRG members meet at regular intervals
to discuss and review progress of the MPPs.




WOMEN EMPOWERMENT

Baani MPC continues its emphasis on enhancing the participation of women members. The
following interventions have been initiated to achieve the larger objective of empowering women:

e Women awareness programmes were conducted throughout the year, where women
participants were informed about their contribution in dairying and enhancing quality milk
production.

e Baani communicates the role of women in every meeting and forum to emphasize on the
importance of women in dairy sector.

e Women get equal opportunities to become a part of VCG and MRG at the MPP level.

e Women members who consistently pour quality milk in required quantity to Baani, while
fulfilling other criteria of continuing membership, have a better chance to be a director on
the Board of Baani. Board meetings give them excellent opportunity to learn management
and governance. Currently two directors of the board are women.

VILLAGE BASED MILK PROCUREMENT SYSTEM

The aim of Village Based Milk Procurement System (VBMPS) was fully achieved through
collection of milk at village level and reaching more and more milk producers. Also, at the same
time ensuring transparent weighing, testing quality of milk received and sending data
information through GPRS. Calibration of milk measuring equipment is done periodically and
Baani ensures fully transparent and automated system of milk collection at MPP level. Further,
SMS with pouring details of each shift is being received immediately after pouring by the member
and payment SMSis also sent on 10-day cycle.

In coming years, it is planned to further strengthen and consolidate the existing MPPs by
increasing member base in these MPPs.




QUALITY ASSURANCE

Baani continued to put in place practices to meet the standards laid down by the Food, Safety
and Standards Authority of India (FSSAI). Initiatives were taken for improvement of raw milk
quality and milk products as described below:

>

>
>

MCCs and central lab are well equipped with testing facilities like RM, BR, Na, pH and all
kind of adulterants to comply with all statutory requirements.

Antibiotics and aflatoxin testing facilities have been provided at central lab.

Infrastructure improvement of MCC Sherpur, Bhadaur, Lehragaga, Phaguwala and
Mansa has been carried out as per suggestions of Quality Mark Team, NDDB.

Hot water facility has been upgraded from electric geyser to 400L Solar water heating
system to get adequate hot water for CIP and cleaning of raw milk storage tanks and cans
at MCC Sherpur, Bhadaur, Sadiq, Jaito and kot-Ise-Khan. This is a new initiative towards
use of renewable energy.

Analytical, GMP and Food Safety training has been provided to MCC Staff. 10 training
programmes were conducted for 45 participants.

SOPs pertaining to analytical testing of raw milk, testing of incoming material, quality of
raw milk, incoming material, CIP Cleaning and calibration of equipments etc have been
putin place.

Mandatory FOSTAC training of 16 employees like QA executive, MCC In-charge and
Chemists has been conducted and the participants were awarded certificate by FSSAI.
Separate cow milk collection has been approved by Mother Diary team for MCC Malout
along with already approved MCCs of Phaguwala, Sherpur, Bhadaur, Jaito and Kot-Ise-
Khan.




MARKETING

49.65 lakh litres of PPM (Poly Pouch Milk), 4.45 lakh kgs Curd, 3.78 lakh litres Lassi and 1.13
lakh kgs of Ghee were sold during the year. By identifying a great potential in market for milk and
milk products, Baani planned its expansion of sales operations in new areas of Punjab as well as
adjoining states of Haryana and Himachal Pradesh. Concerted efforts were put in to enhance the
sales through improved branding, establishing Baani preferred outlets and consumer
advertisements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Automation of Human Resource (HR) functions using HR One software was one of the key
achievements, providing an end-to-end Human Resource Management System (HRMS). It has
increased the efficiency of HR functions notably in payroll, time management and benefits
administration.

Human Resource is an asset and has been instrumental in driving performance of Baani. The
relevant polices, SOPs etc. adhering to Statutory Compliance requirements have always been
put in place to ensure satisfaction of employees as well as statutory bodies. Baani provides a
healthy, safe and friendly work environment to all employees.

Team Building

Employee engagement is another area of importance for Baani and in order to strengthen this
area further, the second Cricket

Tournament was organized on 6th Nov 2018

at Diesel-Loco Modernisation Works Cricket

Ground on the occasion of 4th Anniversary

of our procurement operations. Total of six

teams participated in the tournament. The

teams were comprised of mix of employees

from HO as well as Field.

This event was enthusiastically welcomed by
all the employees.




PRODUCTIVITY ENHANCEMENT SERVICES

Baani aims to provide superior animal nutrition in the form of Baani Cattle feed and Area
Specific Mineral Mixture (ASMM) to the producer members for their cattle. In order to improve
the health, reproduction and milk yield of cattle, members are encouraged to use animal
nutrition products . During the year, 4258 MT of cattle feed, 91 MT of mineral mixture and 6 MT
of ration balancer were provided to the members.

Ration Balancing Programme was successful in providing animal nutrition advisory services to
the milk producers at their doorstep with the help of Local Resource Persons (LRPs) to facilitate
increase in milk yield, reducing production cost and also contributing to reduce methane
emission.

Internal Trainings on RBP, FY'18-19

Basic Training of LRPs 9 (No. of Trainings) 143 (No. of Participants)
BAANI FEED RBP
e Project CMT

California Mastitis Test (CMT) has been initiated to create awareness among producer members
about mastitis control measures to prevent losses. Trained Baani field staff is helping the
producer members to identify clinical and subclinical mastitis (through CMT) cases, motivate to
take treatment, examine the effectiveness of treatment, monitor mastitis cases regularly and use
preventive methods.

During the year, more than 10,000 animals were screened for subclinical mastitis. Baani is
planning to screen 1,00,000 animals for subclinical mastitis in the upcoming financial year.




e Farm Development Project (FDP)
Farm Development Project is an extension activity project initiated by Baani based on
subscription.

The main objective of this project is to assist dairy farmers in adopting good management
practices and focus more on disease prevention rather than spending money on medicines and

veterinary services.

This concept is aligned with Baani's Mission of reducing input cost of the members. This project
is started in villages under area of MCC Mansa, Bhadaur and Raman.

FARM DEVELOPMENT PROJECT ( FDP)




INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Baani continued to invest in automation technologies with addition of 275 GPRS enabled Data
Processing & Milk Collection Units (DPMCUs) in order to improve efficiency and transparency in
operations. Moreover, IT department optimized and automated several processes to achieve the
objective of system dependent operations and minimize human intervention enabling Baani to
enhance operational efficiency, timeliness and eliminate human errors.

During the year, Baani also
invested in Fixed Assets
Management software to
manage vast inventory at all the
locations up to the MPP level
with the help of barcoding each
and every asset. The software
will facilitate in keeping a record
and tracking movement of all
the assets.

Further, conforming to the values of Honesty and Transparency, Baani is sending text messages

(SMS) to all the members about
their milk pouring details of each
shift. Members are also informed
about their member code
activation via text message
(SMS). Baani also sends text
messages to Sahayaks having
details of Milk received at MCC.

Information Security Policies are
there to strengthen internal
controls and prevent
unauthorized access to data,
thereby ensuring appropriate
protection, confidentiality and
integrity of information assets
was also enhanced.




Chapter IV
PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Graph 1. Consumer Rupees Distribution FY 2018-19

Consumer Rupees Distribution




Graph 2. Membership Graph

Graph 3. Share Capital Contribution by Members




Graph 4. Average Milk Procurement Per Day

Graph 5. Turnover Growth




ChapterV
ACCOMPLISHMENTS
Highest Collection of 4 Lakh Litres of milk on 1st February, 2019

It was matter of pride for Baani to collect over Four Lakh Litres of milk on 1*February, 2019. All
the producer members, employees and stakeholders of Baani applauded this feat achieved in
just four years of commencement of operations.

Mr. Narinder Bahga, CE congratulated all the employees and appreciated the concerted efforts
put in by all the departments for this remarkable accomplishment. He encouraged the team to
continue synergy of efforts and work cohesively for achieving higher targets as 'Team Baani'.

Baani won 2" Prize at Pashu Palan Mela, GADVASU

Baani participated in 'Pashu Palan Mela'in' Industrial Category' organized under the aegis of
GADVASU and won second prize for stall. Unprecedented number of visitors comprising
farmers, locals, eminent scientists of GADVASU, Board of Directors of Baani MPC and
representatives of other companies visited the Baani Stall. The visitors appreciated the presence
of Baani as a producer company in Punjab as well as the information provided about Baani, role
and business model, financial benefits and services provided to the farmer members associated.




Distribution of Incentive INR 3.50 Crore

Baani has disbursed a loyalty incentive of Rs 3.50 Crore to its active producer members who
fulfilled all the laid down conditions to qualify for incentive for the FY 2018-19.

Award of Excellence by The Indian Economic Development & Research Association (IEDRA)
Baani was awarded Excellence Award for Industrial Development for outstanding contribution to
National Development by IEDRA in the field of Dairy Industry during the 82™Seminar conducted by

IREDA.
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(DIRECTORS' REPORT)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

The Directors are pleased to present the Fifth Annual Report along with the audited Statement of
Accounts of Baani Milk Producer Company Limited ('Company') for the period from April 01*
2018 toMarch 31% 2019

FINANCIAL RESULTS: -
The Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2019 is summarised
below:
Particulars April 01, 2018 to April 01, 2017 to
Mar 31, 2019(Xin Crore) | Mar 31,2018 (3in Crore)
Total Revenue 365.15 357.63
Total Expenses 357.08 349.87
Profit Before Tax 8.07 7.76
Tax Expense 2.72 2.61
Net Profit After Tax 5.35 5.15
Limited Return (Dividend) [including tax 0.94 0.84
on distribution of dividend]
Transfer to General Reserve 4.41 4.31

STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS: -

The Company during the year has achieved total revenue of  365.15 Crores. The operational
revenues generated was ¥ 363.32 Crore, whereas other incomes earned during the period
amounted to % 1.83 Crore. The total expenses incurred during the year amounted to ¥ 357.08
Crore including depreciation and amortization expense of? 1.80 Crore. This has resulted into an
earning of profit before interest, depreciation and tax (PBIDT) of% 14.19 Crore; and net profit after
tax (PAT) of? 5.35 Crore.

As against the budgeted total income of ¥ 414.82 Crore and budgeted profit before tax (PBT) of %
6.79 Crore for the period, the Company has actually achieved total income of ¥ 365.15 Crore and
profit before tax (PBT) 0of3 8.07 Crore for the said period.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS: -

Milk Procurement:

Company's milk procurement operation continues in nine districts of Punjab viz. Barnala,
Bathinda, Faridkot, Ferozepur, Mansa, Moga, Muktsar, Sangrur and Patiala. However, Baani
extended its procurement operations to cover 1245 villages with 1321 MPPs (Milk Pooling Points)
under 13 MCCs (Milk Chilling Centres) as on 31" March 2019. During the year, the Company has
procured 1002.50 lakh kgs of raw milk with an average collection of 2.75 lakh kgs per day.
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At the end of the financial year 2018-19, Total 0f 46,715 were approved members which indicates
high degree of loyalty and patronage toward the functioning and principles of Baani as a Milk
Producer Company. The ethos of Transparency, Honesty, Passion and Timeliness of Company's'
Value, Mission and Vision has built confidence and trust of the members in functioning of the
Baani. The Company has ensured that competitive milk price is paid to the members in every 10-
day cycle.

The Company is continuously endeavouring to make its operations more transparent, details of
milk pouring are shared to members through a SMS via GPRS enabled DPMCUs installed at each
village MPPs.

WAY FARWARD:

Our MPC is planning to expand the area of operations during the current FY by covering the
existing MPGs operations of Mother Dairy Fruits and Vegetables Private Limited (MDFVL) in 4
districts of Rajasthan. Such an expansion will help our MPC in increasing the business of the
MPC and also in procuring more milk. In the long run, this will also help the MPC to reach out to
more milk producers and become financially stronger.

QUALITY INITIATIVE:

Following initiative has been taken for improving quality of raw milk and milk products.

» MCCs and central lab are well equipped with testing facilities like RM, BR, Na, pH and all
kind of adulterants to comply all statutory requirements.

» Antibiotics and aflatoxin testing facility provided at central lab.

» Infrastructure improvement of MCC Sherpur, Bhadaur, Lehragaga, Phaguwala and
Mansa has been done as per suggestion of NDDB Quality mark team.

» Hot water facility upgraded from electric geyser to 400L Solar water heating system to get
adequate hot water for CIP and cleaning of raw milk storage tanks and cans at MCC
Sherpur, Bhadaur, Sadiq, Jaito and kot-Ise-Khan.It is a new initiative for renewable
energy.

» Analytical, GMP and Food Safety training provided to MCC Staff. Numbers of training
conducted 10 and 45 candidates were trained.

» SOPs of all functions, analytical testing of raw milk, testing of incoming material, quality
plan of raw milk and incoming material, CIP and cleaning, calibration etc. has been
provided.

» Total of 575 numbers of Clean Milk Production training were conducted and 18030 milk
producers were trained.

» Mandatory FOSTAC training of 16 employees like QA executive, MCC In-charge and
Chemists has been done and all participants passed their exam and awarded certificate
by FSSAI

» Mother Dairy has approved cow milk from MCC Malout. Cow Milk from MCC Phaguwala,
Sherpur, Bhadaur, Jaito, and Kot-Ise-Khan has already approved.




PES (Productivity Enhancement Services):

Baani Feed and Baani Min offers a complete nutrition and a balanced diet to the cattle, filled
with natural ingredients and area specific essential nutrients required to improve their health,
reproduction and milk yield. Baani Feed and Baani Min has shown substantial improvement in
its sales volume to the tune of 4257.51 Metric ton and 90.80 Metric ton respectively during the
year under review. Further sale volume of Ration balancer reached to 6.28 Metric ton.

Subclinical Mastitis Screening:

Mastitis and subclinical mastitis are the major issues with dairy farming. As Baani is committed
to reduce the cost of milk production and deliver high quality milk to its customers, an initiative
to make farmers aware about subclinical mastitis screening i.e. CMT (California Mastitis Test)
was undertaken during the year 2018-19. More than 10,000 animals were screened with this
test during the year under review.

Milk and Milk Products:

Total sales during the year was 49.65 lakh litres of PPM, 4.45 lakh kgs Curd, 3.78 lakh litres
Lassi and 1.13 lakh kgs of Ghee. The Company foresees big potential in marketing of Milk and
Milk products and plan to expand its sales operation in new areas of Punjab and adjoining states
of Haryana & Himachal Pradesh. Emphasis was to enhance the product sales, for which
concerted efforts were put in for branding, establishing Baani preferred outlets, advertisements,
hiring qualified and suitable sales team.

During the year under review, the Company has also sold 949.75 lakhs kgs raw milk to
institutional buyers.

PRODUCER INSTITUTION BUILDING (PIB):-

PIB aims to build an institution of its producer member through better governance and member
centric approach. The efforts are directed to increase active membership leading to proliferation
in business aspects.

The PIB activities differentiate the Producer Company from the other players in the dairy sector
mainly through its open and transparent governance system and member equity equivalent to
their patronage. The ownership lies with the members, who are ultimately the policy-makers.
The company strengthen women empowerment through their inclusion in the system. Further,
for better transparent system, the company has put efforts for 100% milk payment through bank
accounts to its members.

MPCs Core Design Principles:

The Core Design Principles are strictly observed and followed. Business dealings are restricted
only with members. Active user membership and their participation in business and governance
are encouraged. All members are having equity in proportion to patronage based on the member
classes. Board of the company is constituted based on the provisions of the Articles of the
Company, which also ensures inclusiveness in governance.

e
e
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Members' Grievances are addressed in time and are being monitored from head office level. With
the support of strong field staff and VCG-MRG, the company ensures to resolve all the queries
received from members.

Member Enrolment and Information Sharing with members:

The automated member enrolment process helped to give better service to members. The
company endeavour to expand its member base in existing and new areas. The company is
committed to share all types of member related information and such information are displayed
at MPP premises. Additionally, company send shift wise milk pouring message to its active
members as well as payment related message in each cycle. This has immensely benefited
members as they get timely information about milk poured, deductions, if any and net payment
which helps in enhancing the transparency in Baani's operations.

Strengthening Member Relations:

The Village Contact Groups (VCG) and Member Relations Groups (MRG) are formed, from among
the members of the company who are consistent in pouring milk to the MPC and have given
consent to be part of these groups voluntarily. These groups facilitate effective two-way
communication between MPC and Producer Members. VCG and MRG members meet at regular
intervals to discuss and review the progress of the Milk Pooling Point (MPP).

Women Empowerment:

Baani MPC continues its emphasis on enhancing the participation of women members. The
following interventions have been initiated to achieve the larger objective of women
empowerment: -

e Women awareness programs were conducted during this year also where women
participants are informed about their contribution in dairying and enhancing quality milk
production.

e The company communicates about the role of women in every meeting and forum to
emphasize the importance of women in dairy sector.

e Women get equal opportunities to become a part of Village Contact Group (VCG) and
Member Relation Group (MRG) at the MPP (Milk Pooling Point) level.

e Women members who consistently pour quality milk in required quantity to the MPP of
the company, while fulfilling other criteria of continuing membership, have better chance
to be a member on the Board of the company. Board meetings give them excellent
opportunity to learn management and governance. Currently two directors of the board of
MPC are women.




NDP-1

The Company, as an End Implementing Agency (EIA), was sanctioned two Sub-Project Plans
(SPPs) by the NDDB (PMU- NDP-I) under the National Dairy Plan-I (NDP-I) to be implemented
from 2014-2015t0 2016-2017. The same were extended for two more years up to FYs 2017-18 &
2018-19: -

A. Ration Balancing Programme (RBP)

B. Village Based Milk Procurement System (VBMPS)

Ration Balancing Programme:

RBP programme was successful in providing animal nutrition advisory services to the milk
producers at their doorstep with the help of Local Resource Persons (LRPs) to facilitate increase
in milk yield, reducing production cost and also contributing to reduce methane emission.

Village Based Milk Procurement System:

The aim of VBMPS was fully achieved in expanding the infrastructure for collection of milk at
village level and to reach more and more milk producers; and also to ensure transparent
weighing, testing quality of milk received and sending data information through GPRS.
Calibration of milk measuring equipment is done periodically and the company ensures fully
transparent & automated system of milk collection at MPP level. Further, SMS with pouring
details of each shift is sent to each member and payment SMS is also sent on 10-day cycle.

In coming years it is planned to further strengthen and consolidate the existing MPP and
increase member base in existing Milk Pooling Points.

Training & Capacity Building Programs:

Training of all stakeholders of Baani has remained the main focus area during the current year
also. The training programs were organized for the existing members, potential members,
women, school children, rural youths, MRGs and VCGs. Board of Directors were also imparted
trainings in various areas to enhance their business skills. Major training programs conducted
during the year 2018-19 are: -

S. No | Training Programmes gzlsl.:i":l;?:ilnmg 'l::ai;i‘l;artlclpants
1 Producer Awareness Programme 764 24024
2 Quality & Clean Milk Production 575 18030
3 Women Awareness Programme 404 11318
4 Rural Youth Awareness Programme 39 762
5 ﬁlirgall}a?;:izol Children Awareness 16 1151
6 Leadership Development Programme 9 40
for MRG
7 MRG orientation Programme 48 827
8 VCG Orientation Programme 125 1789
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MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR: -

There is no material /substantial change after the closure of financial year ended 31.03.2019.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: -

Further there is no change in the nature of business of company during the year under review.

LIMITED RETURN (DIVIDEND): -

The Board is pleased to recommend a Limited Return (Dividend) of ? 8/- per equity share of the
face value of ¥100/- each for the period ended March 31, 2019. This dividend is subject to
approval of Members at the ensuing 6" Annual General Meeting and will be paid to those
Members whose names appear in the Register of Members on 31.03.2019. The dividend for the
financial year @ 8/- per equity share will absorb 2 0.94 Crore, including Dividend Distribution
Tax 0f?0.16 Crore.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE: -

The Board proposes to transfer an amount of ¥ 4.41 Crores to the credit of General Reserve in
terms ofrelevant provisions of the Articles of Association ofthe Company read with the Section
S581ZI of the Companies Act 1956.

FINANCE: -

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31,2019 was ¥ 2504.51 lakhs. The company continues to
focus on judicious management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories and other
working capital parameters were kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in
the design or operation was observed.

DEPOSITS: -

Your Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL AND MEMBERSHIP: -

As at March 31, 2019, the paid up share capital was ¥ 9.78 crores, subscribed by 46,715
members.




VOTING RIGHTS AND ATTENDANCE AT AGM: -

As at March 31, 2019, the paid up share capital was 2 9.78 Crore, comprising of 46,715 members
on the register of members of the Company.

After 31 March 2019, Company has enrolled 5869 new members and the membership of 10,350
members have been cancelled/ surrendered due to non-fulfilment of membership criteria.
Therefore, the total number of members as on the date of this report stands at 42,234 members
who are entitled for attending the 6™ Annual General Meeting.

Out of total 42,234 members as on date,

« 10,233 members have the rights to exercise vote on all resolutions to be moved at the 6
AGM (including voting on election of their respective class of Director) since they fulfil all
the conditions set for their respective class.

4,356 members have the rights to exercise vote on all resolutions (except voting on
election of their respective class of Director) to be moved at the 6™ AGM since they failed to
fulfil all conditions of their respective class though they completed minimum 200 days
and 500 Itr of milk supply to company during the FY 2018-19.

« 27,645 members are entitled to attend 6" AGM but did not have the rights to exercise vote
on any resolutions to be moved at the 6" AGM as they have not fulfilled the conditions of
minimum 200 days and 500 Itr supply of milk to company.

New members, who were admitted as members of the Company post March 31, 2019, will not be
entitled to dividend for FY 2018-19 as well as voting right at 6™ AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: -

Articles 9.5 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that the number of positions
on the Board representing each class of members, to the extent possible, shall be based on
patronage of the respective class. The criteria for categorizing members into three different
classes viz., Class-A, Class-B and Class-C based on patronage were approved by the members at
the first Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31.10.2014.

Based on the analysis of the data w.r.t., fulfilment and non-fulfilment of patronage criteria by the
members during FY 2018-19, it has been found that, out of 46,715 total members as on March
31, 2019, 18,236 members have fulfilled all the prescribed criteria of patronage of their
respective class. Accordingly, out of these 18,236 members, 1,587 comprised of Class-A, 3,548
comprised of Class-Band 13,101 comprised of Class-C. Whereas the proportionate percentages
(%) of quantity of milk (patronage) supplied by the said Class-A, Class-B and Class-C of members
amongst themselves were respectively 40.24%, 28.42% and 31.34% during FY 2018-19.
Accordingly, the composition of the Board providing for representation of each class of members
on the Board based on patronage of each class of members comes to 4 Directors for Class-A, 3
Directors for Class-B and 4 Directors for Class C respectively. The Company shall meet the
requirement of Article 9.5 as under: -

e

30

N—/



Class-A Directors-

Due to resignation of Sh. Tarlochan Singh (DIN: 07915539), Class A director w.e.f. 28.06.2019,
presently the Board has only one (1) Director representing Class-A, who not being longest in his
office and hence shall not retire at the ensuing AGM.

As per the class representation based on the patronage criteria, the Board in its 25" meeting has
declared two (2) vacancies in Class -A.

Class-B Directors-

At present the Board has four (4) Directors representing Class-B.
Sh. Gurpair Singh (DIN: 06868658), a class B Director is liable to retire by rotation in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

As per class representation based on the patronage criteria, no vacancy has been declared by the
Board in its 25" meeting in Class -B.

Class-C Directors-
At present the Board has one (1) Director representing Class-C.

Sh. Gurtej Singh (DIN: 07455673) and Smt. Gurmeet Kaur (DIN: 06868692), Directors who did
not fulfil the eligibility conditions set for their respective class, shall be liable to retire by rotation
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

As per the class representation based on the patronage criteria, Board in its 25" meeting has
declared one (1) vacancy in Class -C.

Based on recommendation of Nominating Committee, the Board recommends the appointment
of Smt. Beant Kaur (DIN: 08508130), Smt. Kanwaljit Kaur (DIN: 08507568) and Sh. Bhupinder
Singh (DIN: 08507477) representing “Class A”, and “Class C” respectively to fill up the 2
vacancies of Class-A and 1 vacancy of Class C respectively. The statement containing name and
qualifications of the Director seeking appointment is annexed to the Notice convening 6" AGM of
the Company.

This will make the total strength of Directors in Class-A to 3 Directors, in class B to 3 Directors
and in Class C to 2 Directors as permissible under Article 9.5 and 9.6 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

During the year under review, Sh. Sriram Singh (DIN :06895219), Executive Director, of NDDB
Dairy Services (NDS), has been re-appointed as an Expert Director of the Company with effect
from 25.11.2018 for a period of two years. Further Dr. Omveer Singh (DIN: 02702981), Managing
Director of NDDB Dairy Services, has been appointed as an Expert Director of the Company with
effect from 30.05.2019 in place of Sh. Ajay Kumar Khosla (DIN: 01854876) for a period of two
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years. The Board would like to thank Sh. Ajay Kumar Khosla (DIN: 01854876) for his association
as a director with the Company. Further Sh. Tarlochan Singh (DIN: 07915539) has also resigned
from the Directorship of Company w.e.f. 28.06.2019.

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS: -

During the report period, the directors have been imparted training in the business model of the
Company and training in leadership making them aware of the responsibilities, duties and
importance of their capacity building. Further the Board of Directors (BOD) of Baani Milk
Producer Co. Ltd., Patiala visited Paayas Milk Producer Co. Ltd. for exposure visit from
12.02.2019 to 15.02.2019. During the exposure visit, CEO of Paayas MPC briefed the BODs on
overview of MPC operations, followed by healthy discussion. In addition, visit to REIL's corporate
office, MPP, MCC and Cattle Feed plant of Paayas MPC was also organized, which provided
opportunity to learnings, while seeing the operations and interacting with members/ officers.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: -

As required under Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956 ('Act'), Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed by the Company;

b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on 31 March, 2019 and of the profit of
the Company for the period ended on that date.

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
and

d) thedirectors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

AUDITORS: -

The Auditors of the Company, M/s. S.B. Billimoria & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire at the
ensuing AGM, and have confirmed their eligibility and willingness to accept office, if re-
appointed.

The Board of Directors recommends the re-appointment of M/s S. B. Billimoria & Co., as the
Auditors of the Company at the ensuing AGM.

AUDITOR'S REPORT: -

The observation made in the Auditors' Report read together with relevant notes thereon are self-
explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND AUDIT: -

The Company has in place the proper and adequate internal control system, which ensures that
all assets are safeguarded and protected and the transactions are authorized, recorded and
reported correctly. The internal audit of accounts is conducted regularly by the external firm of
Chartered Accountants viz., M/s. Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants. The Internal
Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and carryout the audit.

HUMAN RESOURCE: -

Automation of HR functions using HR One software was the key achievement, which provides an
end-to-end Human Resource Management System (HRMS). The most obvious benefit provided is
in the realm of productivity of HR department. Implementing HR software has automated a huge
number of HR functions, most notably payroll, time management and benefits administration.

Human Resource is an asset and has been instrumental in driving the Company's performance.
Proper Polices, SOPs have been put in place, adhering to all Statutory Compliance has always
been in fore front to ensure satisfaction of statutory bodies and auditors. Company provides
healthy safe and friendly work environment to all employees.

Employee engagement is another area of interest of Baani, and importance of team building
which cannot be over emphasized, a cricket tournament was also organized on 06 Nov 2018 at
DMW Cricket ground among employees of the Company. The colourful event was eye-catching
and enthusiastic participation of all was noticeable and it enhances the morale of all the
employees of Company.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY: -

Baani Milk continued investing in automation technologies with addition of 275 GPRS enabled
DPUs to improve efficiency, timeliness and transparency in the operations. Moreover, IT
department optimized and automated several processes to achieve our objective of system
dependent operations and minimizing human intervention which helped Baani Milk to enhance
operational efficiency, timeliness and eliminate human errors.

In year 2018-19, Baani Milk also invested in Fixed Assets Management software to manage vast
inventory at all the locations up to the MPP level with help of barcoding of each and every asset.
The software will facilitate to keep record and track movement of all the assets.

Further, to conform to our values of Honesty and Transparency, Baani Milk has started sending
Text messages to all the members about their milk pouring details of each shift. Members are
also informed about their member code activation via text message. We also started sending text
messages to Sahayaks having details of Milk received at MCC.

IT Department also enhanced and enforced Information Security Policies to strengthen internal

controls and prevent unauthorized access to data, thereby ensuring appropriate protection,
confidentiality and integrity of information assets.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: -

During the year under report, none of the employees of the Company was in receipt of
remuneration equal to or exceeding limit as prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956.

SAFETY AND HEALTH: -

Company provides a safe and healthy workplace for its employees. There is always focus on the
health and safety of employees, especially those physically handling the milk. Regular medical
check-ups and necessary training is provided to employees. The Company has adopted eco-
friendly practices, and continuously strive to protect the environment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):-

Refer to section 465 of the Companies Act 2013, Provisions of Part IX A of the Companies Act,
1956 shall be applicable mutatis mutandis to a Producer Company in a manner as if the
Companies Act, 1956 has not been repealed until a special Act is enacted for Producer
Companies. Keeping in view of aforesaid provisions, the company has filed its representations
before Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), New Delhi, to seek clarification regarding the
applicability of Companies Act, 2013 including CSR provisions on 22.01.2019. The clarification
from MCA is yet to be received. The Compliance of CSR provisions will be initiated on the receipt
of clarification from MCA.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: -

The Company is in the business of trading in milk and milk products. However, the Company has
taken all steps necessary for conservation of energy and has been sensitive in making progress
towards this initiative. Administrative and office operations are conducted in the manner
whereby optimum utilization and maximum possible saving of energy is achieved. Further no
specific technology is involved in the business activities of Company. Further foreign exchange
earnings and outgo are nil during the year under review.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:-

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 ('Act) and rules made there under, your Company has adopted a Sexual
Harassment Policy for women to ensure healthy working environment without fear of prejudice,
gender bias and sexual harassment.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/ RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:-

All related party transactions that were entered into during the period ended on 31st March 2019
were on arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. The company
framework encompasses practices relating to the identification, assessment, monitoring and
mitigation of strategic, operational and external environment risk to achieving the Company's
business objectives. A Whistle Blow Policy has also been adopted by Company.
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DETAIL OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURT OR TRIBUNAL:-

During the year under review, no such order has been passed that impact the going concern
status and company's operation in future.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:-

According to relevant provision of Companies Act, the company has not given any loans or
guarantees, make investment during the year under review.

MEETINGS: -

During the financial year 2018-19, four (4) meetings of Board of Directors of the Company were
duly convened as per detail mentioned hereunder:

Board Meeting| Date of Board Board No. of Directors
No. Meeting Strength Present
21STBM 29.06.2018 15 12
228D BM 09.08.2018 15 15
23RD BM 05.12.2018 15 13
24TH BM 05.03.2019 15 14

Further during the period under review, the Nomination Committee has met on 29.07.2018.

Further during the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Membership Related Committee
were held on 07.06.2018, 09.07.2018,09.11.2018 and 07.02.2019.

AWARDS:-

Baani had participated in the Industrial Category in Pashu Palan Mela arranged under the aegis
of GADVASU on 15-16 Mar 2019. Unprecedented number of visitors, who had visited our stall -
be the farmers, locals, eminent team members of GADVASU, Board of Directors of Baani MPC
and Representative of other companies, have appreciated the presence of Baani as a producer
company in Punjab and information provided about our company, role and business model,
financial benefits and services provided to the farmer members associated with us. All the
visitors had all the praise about the ambiance & layout of our stall and efforts in boosting Dairy

Industry in Punjab.

The judgement committee of GADVASU for Stall and Interaction with visitors by the exhibitors
has adjudged Baani's Stall at second position and presented us with a trophy.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BAANI MILK PRODUCER
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company™, which comprise the Balance Sheet 25 at 31 March 20109,
and the Staterment of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement far the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explzanatory information.

In ocur apinion and to the best of our information and according to the cxplanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013
("“the Act™) in the manner so regquired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended {(“Accounting Standards™ and other
accounting prineiples generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2019, znd its profit and its cash flaws for the yvear anded on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specfied under section 143(10) af the Act (SAs). Qur respansibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAIL) together with the ethical
requircmaents thet are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules mads thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accardance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics., We belisve that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our audit apinion an
the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Therzon

» The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director's Report, but does not include the financial statements and
aur auditor's report therson.

» Cur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
axpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with the audit of the financial statements, our respansitility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whethear the other infarmation is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements ar aur knowledge obtained during the course of the audit ar
atherwise appears to be materizlly misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is & material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report the fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard.




Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directars is responsible for the matters stated in Section 1345} of thea
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act) with respect Lo Che preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial positicn, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility zlse includes maintznance of adeguats
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding the assets of tha
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and
application of appropriate aceounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasanable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the acocuracy and completencss of
the aceocunting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether dus to fraud or
Srrar.

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liguidate
the Company or to cezse operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Thase Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

our objectives are to aobtain reasonable assurance about whoether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an
aguditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of us=rs taken an the basis of these financial statements.

As pert of an auwdit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgrment and maintzin
professional skepticism throughoot the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statermments, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Otain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section  143(3){i} of thea
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
contrals,

«  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.




« Conclude an the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's ability to
cantinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we ara
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements ar, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinicn. Qur conclusions ara
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, futura
evenls or canditions may cause the Company Lo cezse to continue as a gaing concermn.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statermerts of such
entities or business activities included in the financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
angregabe, makes it probakle that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statzments may be influenced. We considar gquantitative materiality and qualitativa
factors in {i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(1} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We cammunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with gowvernance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As reguired by Section 143(3) of tha Act, based on our audit we repert that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

BY Tn aur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by thea
Company so far as it appears from our examinztion of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

&)l On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on 31 March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directars is disgualified as on 31 March, 2019 from be=ing appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.
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1 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Campany and the aoperating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate
Roport in “Anncxurc A", Cur report exprosses an unmaodificd apinion on the adcguacy
and gperating effectiveness of the Company’s internal finzancial cantrols cver financial
reporting.

gy With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repart in accordance
of Section 197{16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to
the managerial remuneration not applicable.

hy With respect to the ather matters to he included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our
apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigetions which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Comparny did not have zny lang-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any materizl foreseeahble losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required te be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Aoditor’s Report) Order, 2016 {"the Order/CARO 2018
issued by the Central Gowvernment in terms of Section 143{11]) of the Act, we give in the
*&nnexure 3" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

3. As required by Section 58172G of the Part IXA of the Companies Act, 1956 (in terms cf
section 465 of the Companies Act, 2013, provisions of part XA of the Companies &ct arg
epplicable to a producer company in a manner as if the Companies Act, 1956 has nat been
repealed}, we give in the "Annexure ¥ a statement on the matters specified in that Section.

For &. B. BILLIMORIA B CO.
Charterad Accountants
(Registration No. 101496W)

Sd/-

Jitendra Agarwzl
Flace: Gurugram Fartner
Date @ 29 July, 2019 (Membership Mo, 87104)

UDIMN: 19087 104AAAACGT 775




ANNEXURE "A" TO THE IMDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulataory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have zudited the intermal fimancial controls over financial reporting of Baani Milk Producer
Company Limited {"the Compary®™) as of 31 March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial staterments of the Company Tfor the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company cohsidering the essential components of internal control stabed in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Finarcial Controls Over Financigl Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilitias include the design, implementation and maintenanca
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infonmation, as raquired
under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qwer Financial Reporting {the “Guidance MNote™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Saction 143(10) of the Companizs Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internmal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls aver financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effactively in all material respects.

Qur audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls aver financial reporting included cbtaining an understanding of
internal financizl controls over financial reporting, sssessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and ewzluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
basec on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depenc on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemeants,
whether due to fraud or error,

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for cur audit opinicn on the Company's internal financial contrels system owver financial
reparting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Cantrols Qver Financial Reporting

A company's intermal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurznce regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted zccounting
principles. & company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairy reflect the transactions end dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transzctions are recorded as necessary to permit preperation




aof financial staterments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of menagement and directors of the campany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Beczuse of the inherent limitations of intermal financial contrels over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper managemant override of contrals, material misstatements
due to error of fraud may occur and not be delected. Alsc, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial cantrols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial contral over finencial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, e the best of our information and according to the sxplanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrals system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively 2s at March 31, 2019, based an the internal control over financial reporting criteria
astablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Far 5. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Registration No. 101496W)

Sd/-

Jitendra Agarwal
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date : 29 July, 2019 {Membership Mo, 37104}

UDIN: 19087104888 MCG7 775




AMNMNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Reports an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section
af aur report of even date}

(1)

(i)

(i}

(v

(v}

(wii

(wii}

(iii)

In respect of its plant, property and equipment:

a. The Company has maintained proper recards showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of the plant, property and equipment.

L, The plant, property and equipment were physically werified during the year by
the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in
our opinicn, provides for physical werification of all the plant, property and
equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such wverification.

()

According to the information and explanations given Lo us, the Company doss not
have any immovable propertics of frechold or leaschald lznd and building hence
reporting under clause {(i){¢) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

Ac explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during tha year by the
management at reasocnable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured ar unsecurad, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Campany has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and
hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company bas not
accepted any deposits from the public. Therefore, the provisicns of clause 3(v) of the
CARD 2016 is not applicable,

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / actvities, reporting under clauss
(v} of CARGC 2016 is not applicatle.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has gererally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriete authorities, We are informed that the operations of the Company during
Lhe year did not give rise to any lability for Custams Duty.

k. There are no undisputed amounts paysble in respect of Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employsss State Insurance, Income Tax, Goads and
Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 21 March, 2019
for a period of mare than si¥x months from the date they became pavable.

co There are no dues of Incame Tax, Custom Guty and Goods and Services Tax as on 31
March 2012 on account of disputes,

In our opinion and accarding to the informaticn and explanations given fto us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of lgans or borrowings to banks. The
Company has not taken any loan fraom financial institutions and it has not issued any
debentures.




(ix)

()

(xi)

(=i}

[ i}

[ =iv)

[xv)

[xwi)

The Coempany has nolt raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
[including debt instruments) or term |loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicabla.

T the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has besn naticed or reperted during tha year.

The Company is a private company and hence the provisiocns of section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

The Company is not 2 Midhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii} of the CARDO
2016 is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given tc us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companias Act, 2013, where
applicable, Tar all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the finzncial statements etc. as reguired by ths
applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allabment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause {xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable o the Company.

In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during tha
yedr the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are nat apglicable.

The Company is not required bto be registzred under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank cof
India Act, 1934,

Far 5. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Reqgistration Nao. 101496W)

Sd/-
Jitendra Agarwal

Place: Surugram Fartner
Date : 29 July, 2019 {Membership No. 87104)

UDIN: 19087 104AAAACGY 775




ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under "Reperts on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
af aur report of even date}

The amaunt of debts due from szle of goods and services are as disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements. According to the information and explanations given to us no debts
are considered as doubtful of recovery.

Acrcarding ta the information and explanations given to us, cash on hand as at yvear-end
has been physically verified by the management and no discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. According to the information and explanations given o us, the Company does
not hold any investment securities.

The details of assets and liabilities as at 31 March, 201% are as per the financial statements
af the Company as at and for the vear ended 31 March, 2019,

i, In aur opinicn and accarding to the information and explanzations given to us, the Company
has not done any transacticn which appears to be contrary to the provisions of part IXA of
the Campanies Act, 1955,
W, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loan to its directors.
Wi, Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has nok given any
donations ar subscriptions during the year.
For 5. B. BILLIMORIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
[Registration Ma. 101436W)
Sd/-
Jitendra Agarwal
Place: Surugram Fartner
Date @ 29 July, 2019 {Membership No. 87104)

UDIM: 19087 104AAAACGY 775




EBEAANL MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 21 MARCH, 2019

Mota Mo. As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
Rupeecs Rupees
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ funds
{a} Hhare capital 3 QAR AT AN &,09, 26,500
b Roserees and furalus 4 153,21 76 OHE 4.60,50,048
22,00 18, GHE 17,20 77,440
2. Share application money pending allotment 29 1.06,82.2C0 86,06,70C
3. Deferred grant 5 AEF 00 208 L.33.10,005
4. Men - current liabilities
[a] Orher king-term liahilities E 240 A 00 £A320,312
'BY Long term provisions 7 21,05 283 15,71 349¢<
3..8 34 354 20897711
5. Current liabilities
fal Shorl lerm borrowings B 43, 66,090,913 F&,68,07,197
by Trade pavables 5
iy Toral outstanding dues of micre and small A9, 360 -
RATEIATISES
fit Tolal eulslarding dues of crodilors olhor than 18,33,82,244 16,45,22,30%
mico and small enterprises
(] SLher currenl liabilitios 10 1.50,16 4CE 2,74.79,787
4% Shart - TR M provsinns 11 TH G RIR -
G473 82,451 95, 3809 285
Tolal 96,62, 20,201 — 1,22,37 22,058
B. ASSETS
1. Mon - current assets
fal Proparty, Plant & Equipmant
iy Tanuib o gssels 12 12.47,80,73G 11,72,60,733
fil}  Intangibh 2 assets 12 L2 A UAR 1,RA 65 40E
Yl Cazpimal work in orogress 1,494, A8% 4 80 RRE
13.02,00,413 13%.3£4,06.01%
R Dafened taw assats 13 24, 14,882 11,84, /88
(c)] Long term lzans and advances 14 31,52 4C7 B4,3E5.00C
iy Dlher non-currenl gssels 15 123,614 =
15, 55,0%, 916 14,101,364, R0
2. Current assets
{al [nmvenlorios 16 2,23,10,247 180,221,151
thy Trade receivab es 17 54,53,.33,260 33,004L,708
() Cash and cash equivalents 18 250450992 21,42.71.197
iy Shorl - te-m loans angd achvances 13 7 E5,902 48,533,077
{al Drher current assers N 44,37, 264 R, IR, 52

Total

So goeoompenying noles forming parl of Lhe rancigl stulemenls

In lerms of aar reporl allached

For 5.B. BILLIMORLA & CO.
Charte =d Accounkanas

adi-

Gagandeep Singh

85,03, 17 5B5

1,0826,95 455

96,62,20,801

1,22,37,23 058

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors

Manjeat Kaur

Marinder Bahga

Chairman Director Chief ExecLtive & Director
Silr-
JITENDRA AGARWAL
Faizncr Sds- Sdy-

Rajesh Saimi Punil Sharma

Placa:  Surugram
Date: 20.07.2C195

Saniar Marager- Legal & OS5

Flzce: Patiala
Date: 20.07.2010

LZeninr Manager - Finanae & Acoounts

46



BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOS55 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

F.zvenae “rom cporations
Ctner incarae
Total revenue (1423

EXFEMSES
fal Purckasas of shack i1 trade
'} Changes in inventarics of stock-im-trade
() Employves bonelils expense
d} Fingnce mosts
[l Depreciation and armortisation expense
M Slher cxoerses
Taotal expenses

Profit before tax (3-4)

Tax expensa:

{al Curren. Lax

{h? Neferred Faw rharge

(o) Dncore Ly of carl er yedrs wrillen back
Mel Las expen s

Prafit for the vear [(5-6)

Earnings per equity share:
(Maminal value Rs, 100 2er shars)

(a1 Basao
(hl Diluked

Mote No. Year ended 31 Year anded 31
March, 1019 March, 2018
Rupeaes Rupees
22 3.63,31.91,546 3,00,00.14,194
a2 1, R3.454.142 1,A% 55,665
3,65,15,59, 988 3,57,63,69, 859
23 .27 .5BR.145,605 3236127748
24 (44,551,833 27,07.590
25 5,03,41,381 4,60,35,216
2h A3 4 B3 4,58,87,452
12 1,79.93,806 1,27.74,270
27 13 72 39 673 15,52.34 451
357,08 40,265 3,49 87 47 B13
B.07,.19,733 776,222,046
2 B, 00,000 2,3%,09,000
[12,37,154) f,59,9560
[3.59 G52} T8, 4830
272,17 134 2,601,131 474
5.35,00,599 51510573
33
L7220 55.50
57.03 R8.27

See accompanying notes forming part of the financlal stakements

In Lerms of cur reporl allachoc

For 5.B. BILLIMDRIA 8 CQ,
Charlerac Accounkanls

5;].1"
JITENDRA AGARWAL
Farlncr

Place: Gurugram
Dale: 29.07.2019

For and an behalf of tha Board of Directors

Sey-
Gagandeep Singh
Chairman

Sof-
Rajesh Saini
SENDT Vianager-
Loqal & C5

Flam=: Patiala
Dale: 29.07.2019

S;- Sy

Manjest Kaur Marinder Bahga

NMirartar Chief Executive & Direcknr
Sy -

Punit Sharma
SENST MENAQEr -
Fnance & &ccounks




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Rupaas Rupaas
A. CASH FLOW FROM QPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES:
Prafic helfnre 1ax B,0F, 189,70 FLRE, 2P, DR
Adjustments For :
Finand: cosls 4,31,20. 388 4, 54,895, 652
Intorest income (Lg%, 04,239) (1,315,259, 165)
Profit on salc of fixcd asscts [5,01,479) (h,22,635)
Provision Far employes bansfits 10,27,752 2,12 868
Dapraciation armd amarlizalion e painse 1,7%,.38 8046 1,27, 74,370
Dparating Profit before working capital changas 12,74,01,851 12,24,532,135
Adjustments far mavement in warking capital:
(Inereaselfdoecroase ininvenlurics [32,38,997) 3,83,.555%
(Increasel/decreasa in trade raceivablas 23,27 .08, 443 [35,34,27 B26)
(ncreasel/decreasa i lonc term loans ard edvancas {434,749 25,025
[Thereaselfdarrease in sharl teer lnans ancl advances (30, 20,594 bh 16, DA
(Increasel/decreass in other naa-currert assets (125460 3,85,77,116
(Increase)/decreasa in other carrent asssts 53,495 (22,635)
Increase In trade navahles 2,93,54,299 2.48,65,246
Increaso in other current lakilities [24,9_,193] 1,19,49,515
Cash generated from oparations 43,90,90,948 {15,36,79, 707}
MNet incarmea tax fpaid) (2,347 H4 48] (445,31, 208
Net cash flow from/ (usaed in) operating activities - {A) 41,53,06,500 {17.62,10,915}
B. CASH FLOW FROM IMVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES:
Bank helances nob considerad as Lash and cash aquivalents [3,9%,50, 7449 [4.04,682,05)
Capital expencditure or fived assets (net of capital grart received ) (20206, 1417 (78,773,111
Froceeds fram sale of fixed assets 5,822,924 &,08,298
Interast racalvad 1L E5, 2 TR 1,001, 5Y, 464
MNet cash flow {used in) investing activities - (B) (456,58, 223) {(3:38,37,424}
C. CASH FLOW FROM FIMNANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proacocds Feam issud al eouity shars Sapital 242,18,500 50,20,700
Share application money “cocived L,06,83,200 8,96, 700
Fepzyment of lang terny bormrawings - (B.47,35,591)
Met Increase/{dacrezse’ In working capltal Dorrowings (33,01,97 284 32,92,28,022
Divicend Paid including divicend Lax [93,23,9460) (55,58, 621)
F rance costs paid (4,564, 26,625) (4,52,61,664)
Nat caszh flow from financing activities - (<) (37,30, 25,270} 22.63,80, 246
MNet increase in Cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) (33,76,9943) 1,63,41,906
Cash and cash equivalents st beginn ng of tha yaar 1,80 20,553 148,758,647
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,46,43,559 1,E0,20,553
Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
zash In hand 3,149 356 1,52,755
Balancos wilh banles:
i1 current occaunts 1,43,24,203 1,78,67,.708
ash and cash equivaleints as e Cash Flow Statemenl 1,dR,£3,5549 1,Hi1,41,553
Aclels Gan< balanass nal conside-cd as Cash and cash cau valent 43,538,007, 433 18,42,50,644
Cash and bank balances as pe- Balancs Shcet (Moke 19) 15,04,.50,992 21,42,71,197
Sec aczompanying neles Morming park of Lhe Tinancial slatemcrls
In terms of cur report attachad For and on behalf of the Board of Directers
For 5S.B. BEILLIMORIA & CC.
Chartered Sooounstants - =/ -
Gagandeep Singh Manjeet Kaur Marinder Bahga
Chairran Director Chict Exccutive & Circctor
Sl
Jitendra Agarwal Sely- -
Hartner Rajesh Saini Punit Sharma
Sanin Mainaner- | aal B s EeEninr ManAacer - Finanre & Accoonl=
Placa: Garugranm Flare: Paflala
Cealexs 22.07,2019 Dakcs: 29,07,201%
e
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BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the financial statements
1. Corporate infermation

Baani Milk Producer Company Limited {"the Company™] was incorporated on 11 August,
2014 under Part IXA of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Company has started the procurement operations in the state of Punjab from &th
MNovember, 2014, The Company procures milk directly from milk producers through
'Milk Pooling Paints® (MPP) in willages of Punjab and sells to Mother Dairy Fruit and
Yegetable Private Limited, The Company also trades in "Polypack milk’ {(PPM}, Ghee and
cattle feed.

3 Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting palicies are as follows:
a. Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with the Generally Acrepted Accounting Principles in India {Indian GAAP] to
camply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
("the 2013 Act™) / Companies Act, 1956 ("the 1956 Act™) as applicable, MCA
has clarified that the provisions aof part IXA of the Companies Act, 1956 shall be
applicable to a producer company in the manner as if the Companiss Act, 1956
has nmot been repealed, The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
previous year.

b. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the
reported income and expenses during the vear, The management believes that
the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and rcaschable, Future rosults could differ duc to thesc ostimates end the
differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognized in the
period in which results are known/materialize.

C. Cash and cash equivalents (for the purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash
cquivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of threc months
or less from the date of acquisition}, highly liquid investments that zre readily
canvertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.

d. Cash flow statement

Cash flows ore reported wsing the indirect mcthed, wherchy profit / (loss)
before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
nan-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from nparating, investing end financing activities of
the Company are segregated based an the available informaticon.
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BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

2. Revenue recognition

Sales are recogniged, net of returns and Crade discounts, on transfer of
significant risk and rewards of ownership to ths buyers, which generally
caincides with the delivery of goods to customers.

f. Other income
Interest income on deposits is recognized on a bime proportion basis.
d. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant arnd equipment are carried at cost less accurmulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any., The cost of Property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import
duties and other taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
autheorities), any directly attributable expenditure an making the asset ready for
its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on  borrowings
attributable ta acquisition of qualifying Property, plant and equipment up to the
date the asset is ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on
Property, plant and eqguipment after its purchase is capitalized only of such
expenditure results in an increase in the future berefits from such asset beyond
its previous assessed standard of parformance,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition, less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. An intangikle asset is recognized, where it
is probable that the future economic benefits attributeble to the asset will Now
to the entorprisc and where its cost can be reliably meosured. The depreciable
amount of intangible assets is allocated ovar the besk estimate of its usaful life
on a straight-line basis.

lhe company capitalizes saftware costs whera it is reasanably estimatad that
the software has an enduring useful life. Software is depreciated over thea
management’s estimzate of its useful life of three years.

h. Capital work-in-progress

Assets which are nab ready for their intended use are carried at oost,
camprising direct cost, related incidantal expenses and attributable interest.

i Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on tangible and intangible property, plant and zquipment has been
provided on straight line method as per the useful life of the assets assessed as
under hased on technical advice, taking intn account the nature of asset, the
estimated usage of assets, the operating condition of the asset, past history of
replacements, anticipated technological changes, manufactured warranties and
maintenance support etc,




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

The useful life considered for charging depreciation is as follows:

Description Useful life (in
years)

Plant and equipment 10

Furniture and fixtures 10

Computers and software 3

Office cquipment 10

Depreciation is pravided pro-rata from the date of addition.

All gssets costing Rs. 5,000 or less individually are fully depreciated in the year
of capitalisation.

i- Inventories

lrventaries comprise finished goods and stores and spares. lnventories are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence
and cther losses, where considered necessary. Cost s determined  using
weighted average method. Cost includes all charges incurred in bringing the
inventorics to their present location ond condition. Finished goods include
appropriate proportion of overheads.

k. Grants

Guovernment grants and subsidies are recognised when thereg is reasonable
assurznce that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them
and the grants / subsidics will be reccived. Government grants relatcd to
depreciable property, plant and equipment are treated as deferred grants which
is recognised in the statement of profit and lass on a systematic and rational
basis ower the useful life of the asset, i.e., depreciation charge an assets
procured from such grants is appropriated from Deferred Grant and recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss by way of reduced deprecietion charge.

Rovenue grants and subsidics arc recognised as incomc over the poriods
necessary Lo match them with the costs for which they are intended Lo
compensate, on a systematic basis and are deducted in reporting the related
EXpPEnse.

I Employee benefits

Employece bencfits include Provident Fund, Employec State Insurance scheme,
Gratuity and compensated zhsences.

a. Defined contribution plans

The Company's contributions to Provident Fund and Employess Statz
Imsurance scheme is considered s defined contribution plan and are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss bascd on tho amount of
contributions required to be made as and when services are rendered by
tha employees,
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BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

b. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan. Gratuity is provided based on
actuarial waluation carried gut at the balance shest date. The incremantal
liability based on an actuarial valuation as per the 'Projected Unit Credit’
method, s at the reporting date, is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss Account. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

c. Sheort-term employee benefits

The undigcounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to bea
paid in exchange for the services rendered by employess are recognised
during the year when the employees render the services, These benefit
includes performance incentives and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve manths after the end of the peried in which
tha employee renders the related services,

d. Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to ocour within beelve
months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related services are recognized zs a liabilicy at the present walue of the
defined benefit okligation as at the balance sheet date on the besis of
actuarial vzluation.

m. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit zfter tax by the
weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding during the wear as
adjusted ta the affects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where
rasults are anti-dilutive,

n. Taxes on income

Income tax comprises current tax and deferrad tax, Current tax is the amount
of tax payable an the taxable income for the year as determined in accardance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and
other applicakle tax laws,

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences; being the difference between
taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one pericd and ars
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods, Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all timing
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for timing differences of items
pther than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent
that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which these can be realized. However, if there are unabsorbed
depreciation and carry forward losses, deferred tax assels are recognised only il
there is wirtual certzinty that there will be sufficient future taxable incomea
available to realize such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if
such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws
and the Company has a legal enforceable right for such set off
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0. Borrowing cost

Baorrowing costs includes interest and ancillary costs incurred. Borrowing costs
that are directly attributable tc the scquisition or construction of a gualifying
asset, pertaining to the peried from commencement of activities relating to
construction/development of qualifying asset upto the date of capitalization of
such asset, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All ather barrowing
costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

P- Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrving values of its
property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication
that chose assets sufferad an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
racoverable armount of the asset s estimated in order o determine the extent
of impairmeant lass. Recoverable amount is the higher of an assels net selling
price and wvalue in use. In assessing value in use the estimated future cash
flows expected from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal ars
discounted to their present value using a pre-discount rate that reflects the
current market assessments of time value of monay and the risks specific to tha
asset.

Reversal of impairment oss is recagnized as income in the statemrent of profit
and lpss.

q- Provisions and contingancias

A provision is recognized when the Company has present obligation as a result
pf past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to
settle the abligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be meade.
Provisions (excluding employee kenefits) are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
chligation at the balance sheet date, These are revizwed at each balance sheet
date znd adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Cantingent Assets are
not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to accounts. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial
staterments.

r. Leases

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an
asset substantially west with the lessor are recognized as operating leases.
Legse rent under operating leases are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss account on straight line basis,

5. Material avents

Material adjusting events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into
cagnizance,

L. Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normnal
time between acquisition of assets and their rezlisatinn in cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-

current.
—
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Notes forming part of the financial statemeants

Note 3: Share Capital

As at 21 March, 2019 Asg at 31 March, 2018
Mumber of Amount Numbar of Amount
sharaes Rupees shares Rupeas
{a) suthorised share capital
=quity Shares of ks 100 =ach 20,00.000 20, 00,000,000 20,00,000 20,00,00,000
{b] Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital q,78 417 O, 78,41, 700 B a9 265 8,69, 26 500

Squiby Srares of B 100 2ach

Saa notes (i) to {iii} below
Notes:
{i) HRights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Ihe Campany has issued one class af 2aguiby shaes having facs veloe of iis. 10U each. kach membsar 15 ent ti=2 bo ans vabe, Members a & entitles to
Imiked retum {dividend) and zonus in acocrdance with aAdticlz of Azzociab on af Ere Company.

[ii] Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

A= at and for the year ended March As at and for the year ended March

a1, 2019 31, 2018
Mumber of Amount Number of Amount
shares Rupees shares Rupees
Aharen mulslanding al s beginnivg a? e vz i A%200 &/,65,265,500 70T 61,011,700
L Issued durlng the yaze, [oeb of shares cancellad and 1,0, 152 1 e 15,200 1,08 245 1, 0E, 24,00
ol cturing chie woeos)
Shares pabstanding ot the end af e yoeas 9, 78417 S.08,41, 200 § 69,205 8,65 26,500

{111} The Corpary is registered uader Pact XA of the Companies Act, 1955 as Producer Coorpany' and nane of the memaer he ds 5% o more of the
sha-e capital ot tha Company.
{iv} "o =hors has booniszued for ¢ consideration otbe- thar cash curing tae yoar or 5 veors immediazely proccocirg the financial year




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

Motes forming part of the financial statements

Mote 4: Reserves and surplus

(a} General reserve

(b}

Mote 5:

il
(=}
]
[d}

el
[f}

MNote G:

2l

MNaota 7:

{2

it

Opening halanca
Add - Transhe-red fam surplus in stal2ment
of Profit and Loss
Closing balance

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance

Profit for the vaar

Less:

(i} Final limited return (dividend) to members for the vear
enced 31 March, 2018 (Rs. B per share)

(i1 Tax on above limited return (dividend)

{iii] Transfer-ad 0 Genaral reserve

Clesing balance

Deferred grant

Opeoning bolance

Add; Capital grant utilised during the year (s22 natz 35)
Less: Aszels disposed during Lhe year {see nolz 123

Less: Depracigtion pertaining to assets scquired from grant [se= note

12}
Add: Deareciation on dispesal of assels (see nole 12
Clesing balance

Other long-term liabilities

Trade/secunily deososils

Long term pravisions

Frovision for employes benefits:
(i} For compensated absances (net of Leave encazhment fund

Fs.23,42,992; previous vear Rs.12,55,917)
{ii1 For gratuity {net of Gratuity furd Ks.41,83,088)

As at 31 March,

As at 31 March,

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
7.76.67,3R9 3,45,40,376
A1.10,73,331 1,37,27,013

12,17,40,720

5 FG 67, 389

63,583,560 73,27,533
5. 35.05,5099 5,15,10,5732
£69.54,120 a4,88,136
14,259,440 12,359,397
440,73, 331 4.30.27.013
94,365,268 53.83.560
13.11,76,988 8 60.50.940
5. 33,400,809 6,280,052, 480
1.24.43,.750 72,731,039
171,576 1.33,815
1,54,62,054 #,18,52,554
1,51,179 1,003,750
473,02, 208 5,33,40.900
2,497,209 071 2,573,258,312
2,97,20.071 2,83,26,312
15,56,329 15,71,399
5.48 454 -
21,05,283 15,71,299




BAANI MILK FRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
MNate 8: Shark term borrowlngs
(2} Secured
Orwerdraft from Banks 5,48 27 AR 7,36,63,061

{secured against fired depasit with banks)

[E) Unsecured
Bills discoLnting from banks 37,17,82,225 89,31,44,135
{fouargnteed by Mather Dairy Fruit & Yegetable B LEd)

432,66.09.913 76,68.07,197
MNate 9: Trade pavables
{a} Trade payables (dues of micro and small enterp-ises) /.91 ,360 =
by Trade payables (other than acooptances? 19,33, 82,244 16,45.22.305
[z hote 36) 18,358,756, 604 15,45,22,305
Mate LD: Other current liabilities
{a} Inkerest azcrued 2ut not dus on borrowinos 23,911,228 58,907,465
fhy Unclaimed/unpaid dividends 22,07.132 3L,26,932
b Advances from custormers 1,12,402 91,23,395
rdy Membership cancellation payable AF, 3673 35,005,645
o) Grant recabced (net of utllization] (soo note 330 27,040 -
{F1 Tradefsecurity deposits 26,115,546 -
{0% Statuzory duses {contribution to PF, withholding taxzs, GS5T etc) 29, 28 585 26,55,565
{hy Payable for purchase of Mol assels - 33,70,730
1,50,16,406 2,74,79,787
Mate 11: Short term provisions
{a} Provision of Incomea Tax (net of advance tax of Rs2 60,090,775 15,749,528 o

18, 79,528
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BAANI MILK PROGUCER COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the financial statements

Note 13: Deferred tax assets

Tax offect of items constituting deforred tax assots:

a. On difference betweon boeok halance and tax helanos of
fiwed assets
Provizion for compensated absoncos and qratuizy
Lisallowances undar section 350 of the Incoeme lax ACE, 1981
d. Others

o I

Note 14: Long term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good’)

[a) Security doposits
(k) Advance income tax [Met of provision for tax Rs.5,26,35,174; previous
vear Bs.5,30,141,856)

el Prepaid expanse

Note 15: Other non-current assets
[a} Fixed deposits with banks™
These compr s2s fixed deposits under lizh agalnst sale tax llabillity and

having o maturity of more than 12 months from the Balance shect date.

Mote 16: Inventories
(4t lower of cost and net realizabloe wvalue)

[a) Stock-in-trade Raw Milk {including in Transit- Rs.1,78,92,8591/-, Previous

Yasr Ra.1,34,39,003/-)
(B Stock -in-trado - athars
L) Slores and spa-es

Mote 17: Trade receivables

[Unsecurad, considerec good)

[ay Qutstznding for a perind cxcecding six manths from the date
they weare dus for payment

(21 Others

Ac at 31 March,

Ac at 31 March,

2019 2018
Rupeas Rupegs

14,77,336 3,32,319

7.02.828 5.24,595

= 1,15, 545

2,34,716 2,12,178

24.14,882

11 84, 688

13,51,729 9,13,420
16,92, B0 44,569,145
L8 87 53,434
31,53,407 54.35,000
1,725,624 c
1,25,614 -
1,85,42, 652 1,38,86,515
14,92 566 16,96, AR
22,774,919 34,37,755
2,23.10,147 1,90,21,151
2,004,300 -
54,51,25,890 83.50,41,703
54,53,33,260 83,80,41,708




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMFPANY LIMITED
MNotes forming part of the financial statements

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
2019 2018
Rupees Rupwmes
Note 18: Cash and cash equivalents
{a) Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Cashin hand 3,13 3556 1,52,755
[ii} Balence with barks:
a}y Incurrent accounts 1,43 24 200 1,78,67,798
Cash and cash equivalents [as per AS 3 - Cash flow statement] 1,46,43,559 1,80,20,553
{b) Othar bank balances
(i1 In depasit accounts
- griginal maturity mare than 3 months 3,60,00,001 9,38,51,663
(it Balenues held &5 securily aydinsl bank borroswings 19,76,00,000 9,92,72,0439
(iiiy In earmarled accourts
= Unpaid dividend acrounts 2207 432 31,265,932
25,04 50,992 21,42,71,197

Mote:

(i} Fixed deposit amaounting oo RS 13, 76,00,000 {pravious yvear Rs. 9,92,72,049) have been pledged against bank
averdraft Tacility (se2 note 3).

Mote 19; Short - term loans and advances
(Unsecured, considered good)

(31 Advances tc verdors 36,330,217 15,353,015

(bl Prepaid cxpsnscs 8,55 685 25,553,505

(2} Gratuity fund {net of liahilivy Rs Mil; previous yvear Rs 23,62,531) - 4,93 868

(4 Grant receiveble {see note 334 - 2,70, 683
74 B5.902 49,533,077

Note 20: Other currant assets

(Unsecured, considered qood)

(a1 Inlerest gcorued bul nol due cn bank deposils 47,35,313 63,52,856

(b1 Others 1,971 53,465
47 37 2834 654, 08,322




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

MNote 21: Revanuea from operations

[a) Sale cf procucts (refer note (i) below)
Mote:

Sale of products comprises:
(i1 Traded goods
3.  Raw milk
». Processed milk and milk prodocts
c.  Cattle feed & Others
Total

MNote 22: Other income

(a1 Tnteres: income
1) On deposits with banks
HiY On Income tax rofund
fii) ©On others
[B] Other non-operating incame
11 Membership foo
il Profit on sale of fixed asscts
M Miscellananus inrame

Year anded 31
March, 2019

Year entded 31
March, 2018

Rupees

3,63,31,91,845

Rupees

3,56,00,14,194

3 63,31,91 846

3,29,58,56,103
24,02, 28 558

3.56,00,14,194

3,27,35,04,209
19,44 68 865

8,81,07,180 9,20,41,120
3,63,31,91,846 3,56,00,14,194
1,49,04,239 1,21,29,166
2,37,510 1,63,018
3,338,843 2,568,310
14,28,602 12,51,321
5,561,479 5,22,635

£.97, 460 8,21,215

1,83.6E,142

1,63,55,665




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes farming part of the financial statements

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March, 2019 March, 2018
Rupess Rupees
Note 23: Purchases of stack-in-trade
181 Raw milk 2,57,02,60,828 2.97,71.8%,720
{by Purchass ol processac milk and milk producls 21,60 82,122 17,92,75,225
rcy Cattle feec & Others 8,04 73,635 7.96,62 805
3,27.58,16,605 3,23,61,27 748
Nota 24: Changes in inventorias of stock-in-trade
Decreaze/{increase) in inventaries of
stack-in-trade
(] Inventories at the beginring of the vear 1.,55,83.395 1,82,90,991
‘by Inventories at the erd of the year 2,00,35,228 1,555,832, 395
(ch Mot {increascl/decrease In ventory [44,51 833) 27.07.596
Note 25: Employee benefits expense
2] Salaries and waqges 4,45 30,9586 4,19,80,009
rby Contributien to provident and other funds 52,183,612 35,B7,320
ic) Skatt weltare expensas 58,781 4 65 887
5,03,41,381 4,60,36,216




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March, 2019 March, 2018
Rupees Rupees
Mote 26: Finance costs
{a)l Interest expense on borrowings 4,.31,20,388 4,54,95, 652
(k] Interest on delaved pavment of income tax, VAT et 74,246 3.71,780
4.31,94,634 4,58,67,432
Mote 27: Other expenses
fay <Consurmption of stores and spares 39,411,367 41,77,301
(BY  Power and fuel 7.66,163 5,599,655
(cy  Rent including lease rent 34,70 355 29,93 ED4
(Y Rates and taxes 10,63.910 8,31,/81
ey  Contractual and reta nerskip expenses 3,15,30.632 2,95,97 644
(F1  Repair and maintenance - machinery 1,31,33, 268 74,658,817
() Repair and rmain.enanoe - olthers G3,80,120 58,55,970
{hy Froight, farwarding and distribution cxpenscs 10,06,19 412 80500 3749
(i1 Insurance charges 16.66,825 15,412,504
(i1 Legal and professional fees 95.20.090 79,958,226
(ky  Printing and stalicnery 13,43,132 12,73,245
(1 Auditer's remuneration (refor note {i) bolow! 12,07 503 11,66, 508
(m) Travelling and conveyance 44,581,568 45,689,204
(n)  Commdnication expenses 13,499,206 16,9/ 6,9
oy Advertisement and publicity 34,66,940 10,25,904
(p1  Miscellaneous expenses 6,459,952 35,005,339
18,79,39,672 15,52,34,451
Mota:
{i} Auditors’ remuneration comprises:
a. Statutory audit fze 4.50.000 870,000
b. 1ax audit fee 1.25,000 1.10,000
C. Qut of pocket expenscs 24 579 13,198
. G5T an above L,97,924 1,756,400
1297503 11,609,598




BAANI MILK PRODUCER COMFPANY LIMITED
Mates forming part of the financial statements

MNote 23: Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided far}

Particulars As at 31 Az at 31 March,
March, 2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
A Contingent liabilities
(21  Claims against the Sompsny not acknowledged as debt il Mil
(b Bank yuaran.ces issued on behalf of Lhie Carnpany 1,00, 000 1,000, Qo0

- Buarankeo given Do Sale Tas departman:

Mote 29
The Carmipany had reocived share 2pplicalion money of Bs,1,08,83,200 cyginst which allobmens hgs boen made al Lhe Bogrd Mecling
belel o 30,05, 2009,

Note 20

Tn respect of Fhe year ended 31 Ma-ch, 2019, Fre cirectors in their meeting dated 29th Juky, 2019 have proposed &8 final dividend of
F=.73,27,330/7- {Re.0 por share) to be paid on Fully paid couity shores. The couity dividerd is subject ko approval by sharcholders at
the fnnual Genaral Meetimo and has nat heen ircludec as a liability in the Sinancial statemants. The pmoprsad equity dividend is
payable L all halders of fully paid egquity shares, The lal equity dividerd and tax the-2on amounts Lo 38.75,27,336/- and
R= 16,008,932/ - respactivaly.

Note 21: Employvee benefit plans

Defined-contribution plans

The Company alffers its emp cyees cefined contribution plan in the fa-m of 2rovidert Fund and Family Pensicn Fund, Provicdent
Fund and family pension fund covers all mregular employees. Provicent Fund Contribution is deposited with the Regional Provident
Fund Commissloner (REFCY. 3oth the employees and the Company pay predete-miiec centributlans Inta the praviden: fund and
ponsion fund. The contribaticns arc normal y bosed on o certain proportion of the emplayee's zalary.

The Company kac recognised Re, 30,58, 200 {provicus year R, 28, 85 393" far Pravident Fund and Pongicn Fund contribucion in
the statzment aof proft and lnss.

Defined-benafits plans
The Company offers its employees defired-benefit plans in the form of a g-atuity scheme (3 lump sur amecunt?. Benefits under

the defined oenefit plans are based on yezrs of service and the employee’s compensaton Ommedistely before retiremenc).
Commitments are actuarally determinec at year-end. Actuarial wvaluation is done based on “Projected Uit Credit™ methad.
Gaing anel oeeos of changed actaarial assumplions are charoed o the statoment af Prafit and Loss,

The following lables =ots ool Lha funded status of the defined bonclfit plan in respoct of Sretoity and arount recagnised in the
financial statamants,

1. Change In defined benefit abligation 31 March, z012 31 March, 2018

Rupees Rupees
Present value of obligetions at the beginning o the year 23,562,531 17,122,898
Interest cost 1.81,915 1.28,467
Currenl sorvios cosk LB 17 G K0, 503
b=nefits paid =
Aotuandzl (cain)floss an ahligatian 546 5R4 [2 A5, 637
Present value of abligstions at the end of the vear 41,835,086 23,662,531

ii. Fair value of plan asscts

21 March, 2019

21 March, 2018

RUpees Rupeegs

Fair welua of plan az<cls al the boginning o Che voar 28,558,300 20.04,080
Expected retum on plan assels 227,937 1,08, 104
Cantrinurias made 14,39, /815 11, 7RLAR
Fair Walue adiustment of previous vear [1.87,4921 -

Withdrawals [7.49,302) 14,86,46E5)
Acbuariul gaind{loss) an plar assels 13.224) 52,209
Fair vzlua af plan assers af the end of the year i6.34.133 25, 56,309




EAANI MILK PRODUCER COMFPAMNY LIMITED

Mobexs forming part of the financial statemonks

1Il. Return on plan assets

Expected retum cn plan assats
Aot gpaaind Ievaesd am pelisrs cnaanles
actaal retur on plan assets

iii. Amounl recognised in the Balance Sheal

Prosent value of defincd boncfit coligations

Falr vzlua of plan assets

Mk liabilitys (as=o01) recoaniscd in the bolonce sheet

iv. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Correnl serwico el
lnterest cost
Crpoctod retum on olan assoks

Falr value adiustment o previous year
Met actuarial gaing(lass ) recng viced during e year

Crponss rosegn zod in the Statomont of Frofic and Loss

v. Balance Shoeot reconciliation

Met llabllity#(ass=:) at the beqimning of the yvear

Fapzirar izl
Contrioutiz s
Withdrawals

Met liability/ [(asset) at the end of the year

wi. Principal actu arial assumplions

Lhsceunk rote
Erprctod salary cscalations

Expected returm cn plan assats
ALt rala
Kemaiing Waking Life

Mortal ty tag cosed

31 March, 2019

31 March, 2018

RuUpeaes Rupesazs
2 EF.837 1,04, 109
(%, 334% h2, 2009
2,294,713 1, 60,313

31 March, 2012

31 March, 2018

Rupees Rupess
41,583,080 30,132,164
25.34,133 37 085 FOoH
548,953 {696,541

21 March; 2012

21 March, 2018

Rupees Rupaes
1N,82,075 B,0A,A07
1,851,914 1,285,496/
T2.27.5371 (1,006, 104]
L.H?, 492 -
5,48, 7HA (3. 87,8461
17 83 334 4, 89,320

31 March, 2015

31 March, 2018

Rupoos Rupcos
(4,95, Bal) (2,91, 192)
17,853,374 4,589,370
14,289,814 11, /8.6
(7,49.302% [ 565, 4550
5,485,953 (493,868}

31 March, 2012

31 March, 2018

A8 pLa
11.00% poa.
P50 pLa
15.00%: jp.a
A5 10 Years

LAL 20124 14
Ultinigke

A.50%a ELa
ZE00% paa,
A.50% p.a.
13.00% 5.4
Zd.41 Tegrs

AL 2006 i
Ultimate

The discount rate |5 basad an prevalllimg market ylelds of Governmearkt of Indla securitles as at the balance sheet date tor the

estimated term of cbllgation.

The estimazos of futers salary increases censidoered, takes into account the irfation, senicricy, promotions, incremants and athoer

rlevant factors,

vil. Experience adjustmant

Fresent walue of abhgztion
FCair valua ol plan assals
Fundad status

Caair{ loss ) an chligations
Gain/{loss) on plan assots

Compensated absonoes:
Princlpal actuarial agsumptlons

Lhscount rate

Cxpenclad salary escalatinns
Exprctod retum on plan assos
Alb-itian rate

Femaiing werkig ife

Mortal ty tab e Lsed

31 March, Z1 March, 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 21 March, 2015
019 2015

A1, 585, D LA - L L e 1/, L, B 14, 26,954 9,154,054
30,234,133 25,56, 3499 A0, 04, 000 TELLSAG -

5,48 052 (4,03, 0880 (2,491,192Z) 9,944,548 4,132,030

+8,16.56:1) AR5,037 10,79, 1HF 363602 (25,077
(32240 L2209 4, 08G - -

31 March, 31 March, 2Z01E

2019

s paa A% Eaa

1100 . 0.00% p.a.

7.11% poa. E. 30% p.a.

15010 pLa L5000 a

45,15 Years Z1. 4L Tegrs

LAl 2012-14 1AL Z006-0H

Ultimaoks Llltimate

The discount ratz is based on provailing market viclds of Governmert of India sccuritics as at the balance shect date for the

eslimated term af chligation.

Thie aclimaies of lulure salary ncreases condidered, lakes inlo account the rHalticn, senicrity . promolions, incramanls and otler

relevenl faclors.
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BAANI MILK FRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Neotes Forming part of the financial statements

Mote 32: Leasing armangements

The Company Fas enlered inle owo operaling lease arrangerments for ol lice premises. Tho lease agreement is Tor a pericd ol nine ypears
fi five years with a nen-cancellable period af three vears. Tas lease agreement prowvides for incraasa in lease payments by 5% every
vear, The lease rental expenses of Rs.34,79,355 (previous vear #5.29,%3,804) in rezpect of ooligation under operating leases 13ve bDeen
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Future minimum |eage paymeant are:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2019 2018
RuUpees Rupees
Pavasle nal laler Lhan are e 22,24, 156 15,422,031
Favanla later -han ane wear hut ot larar than fue years FEAd 5209 F431 459
Fayabla later than five vaars - 3,35 323
100 19135 94 08,913
Mote 33: Earnings per equity share
Particulars Unit Year ended March Year ended March
31,2019 31, 2018
Hel polil aller Lex Rs. 5,35,09,558 5.15,10.573
Weighleo average number af equily shares culstanding
during =he year Mumbers 5,35,475 F74,618
Neminal value per aguity shares Rupags 100 10n
Bizsic carning s por shane Rupoes 57.20 65,50
Equity shares used to compure diluted earnings nar shara Mumhsars G.3R.267 FAEAN
Liluted eamings per share RUpees b4.03 =TT




BEAANI MILK FRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Motas forming part of the financlal staterments

AE at March 31, As at March 31,
2019 018
Rupaes Rupeeas

HNote 35: Details of Governmeant grants
Dreslail s ol granbs receivan o MOODE ancd iy alilisalion
isi ats unrer:
fal COnpering Galarce (2,720,049 31,09, G20
[l Gmont receisad during ther year 3,47 9Z 180 E02 20,200
[h] urlis=d during Fheo yeas

{11 For raptal asseks 1,734,344, il A2,A7, 03

(I Far revenue expanses 2.20,51,700 2,9L,90,224

Total utllised {0 v {in 3.449,05,455 3,85,875.268
() Baolance caimiec forward fa-bh 25,040 EEINE Y
HNotc:-
Granl wlilised Tin purchaze ol cap lal avisetls bae eer reuirded andeleored grand amd revsreae grant wbilissel baze een nelbed e with

respective expaonse (S22 note 2k).

Mobta 36

Micro . Small and Madium Enterprises as defined undear MEMED Act

Tha status of the venders under Micre, Small and Mediam Enterpises Developrmant At 20006 15 basac on the certficate submitted by
wendnre about thair coverage unce- the provisions of MSMED A, 2006

AE at March 21, As at March 31,
2019 2018
Rupaes Rupeas
Amcunt remalning unpald to suppliers undar MEMED as at the
cnd of tho yoar
- Frincipal Amount 4,34 60 -

= Inleresl Lhereun - -

Amount of payments made o suppliers beyond the appointed
day during the yaar

= Pring pal armount - -
Lnterzst aztually pald uader seckicn 16 of MSMELD

AN L o7 inteszst due and pavalle ror deloy in paviment 1whikh has
b paricd bt howond thoe appointod doy during ebeopear) bot weithoot
adding Interest under MSMED

Intcrost accrucd and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

- Imtersst acoruesd during the year - -
= [riterast remaining unndicd 4% &t the ard of tha yoar - -

Tr Leresl reraining disalloveabile g ddeduclilde experdilors ancder Lhe - -
Ircoms Eox ACT, LGl

Mote 7
The disc asures as reguirad under Account’ng Standard AS-17 o Seqiment reporting are not required as the Camoany orimandly dezlz Iin

sigls bus ness seqment 20 Filk and Milk Preducts and ope etes inoone geoqraphical € reda.

MHote 38
Fravious wedr's ligures have besr regroopedreclassilizd o wheregeer necsseary e corresporid owilhe Lhe correel year's clacsilicalion §
disclc=sure

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sl =y~ -

Gagandoop Singh Manjoct Kaur MNarindcr Bahga
Chal-men direckcr Chinf Cxecutive R Diresor
Seld- /-

Rajosh Saini Pumnit Sharma

Senior Manager- Legal & C5 Senlar FMannger - Financs & Accaunts

Place: Matiala
Loz 2205 2017
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